

TOOTHAKER.ORG

Unsolicited Proposal Submitted Pursuant to Section 255.065, Florida Statutes

Submitted to:

Monica Cepero, County Administrator
Kevin B. Kelleher, Deputy County Administrator
Michael W. Ruiz, Assistant County Administrator
Michael Kerr, Broward County Attorney
Broward County Board of County Commissioners
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 409
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Submitted on Behalf of:

Isaac Schlesinger, Managing Member
DEPENDABLE EQUITIES, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
315 NE 3rd Avenue, CU 103
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Email: isaac@dependableequities.com

Please Send Copies of Notices and Correspondence to Counsel:

Stephanie J. Toothaker, Esq.
Stephanie J. Toothaker, Esq., P.A.
501 SW 2nd Avenue, Suite 1
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
Email: stephanie@toothaker.org
Phone: 954-648-9376

Date: May 22, 2026

This unsolicited proposal is respectfully submitted to Broward County in accordance with Section 255.065, Florida Statutes, which authorizes counties to receive, evaluate, and consider unsolicited proposals for qualifying projects.

Enclosed with the unsolicited proposal, and pursuant to Part VI of Chapter 38 of this Broward County Administrative Code, is a cashier's check in the amount of \$25,000.00

– 12 Packages Included –

MAY22'26 PM4:02

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION
Stephanie J. Toothaker, Esq.

land use development political strategy procurement

Stephanie J. Toothaker, Esq., PA 954.648.9376 stephanie@toothaker.org [@stoothaker](https://twitter.com/stoothaker) [@toothakerdevelopment](https://www.instagram.com/toothakerdevelopment)
401 E Las Olas Blvd, Suite 130-154 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

May 22, 2026

Monica Cepero, County Administrator
Kevin B. Kelleher, Deputy County Administrator
Michael W. Ruiz, Assistant County Administrator
Michael Kerr, Broward County Attorney
Broward County Board of County Commissioners
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 409
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

RE: Unsolicited Proposal Submitted Pursuant to Section 255.065, Florida Statutes

Dear County Administrator Cepero, Deputy County Administrator Kelleher, and Assistant County Administrator Ruiz,

DEPENDABLE EQUITIES, LLC (“DEPENDABLE”) respectfully submits this unsolicited conceptual proposal for the County’s consideration regarding the County-owned property located at 400 NE 4th Street, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301, Folio No. 504210110130 (the “County Property”).

DEPENDABLE is the owner and developer of the proposed “Ombelle” mixed-use development located at 316 NE 4 Street, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301, Folio No. 504210110160, on the property adjacent to the County Property (see Exhibit 1), and is currently undertaking site clearing, pre-construction, and redevelopment activities associated therewith.

In connection with those efforts, DEPENDABLE has evaluated the surrounding area and the condition of the existing County-owned building situated on the County Property. Based on preliminary observations and publicly available information, the existing County building appears to be vacant, underutilized, and in deteriorated condition. DEPENDABLE understands the structure may no longer serve an active County function and may continue to require ongoing maintenance, monitoring, security, and other carrying obligations by the County.

Accordingly, DEPENDABLE is interested in exploring an opportunity with the County pursuant to Section 255.065, Florida Statutes, whereby DEPENDABLE would, at its sole cost and expense, coordinate and undertake demolition, removal, and site clearing activities associated with the existing County Property, subject to County authorization and execution of mutually acceptable agreements.

DEPENDABLE believes the proposed removal of the existing structure could provide a direct public benefit to the County by eliminating a deteriorated and underutilized building, reducing ongoing maintenance and security obligations, improving safety and visual conditions in the surrounding area, and preparing the County Property for future County-determined use, all at no cost to the County.

In consideration of DEPENDABLE undertaking such demolition and site clearing activities at its sole cost and expense, DEPENDABLE would also seek the County's consideration of a temporary, revocable right to utilize the cleared County Property for construction logistics and support activities associated with the adjacent Ombelle development. Such temporary use could include staging, material storage, contractor access, equipment positioning, workforce coordination, construction parking, and related construction support functions customarily associated with active development projects.

Importantly, DEPENDABLE is not seeking any permanent rights, interests, restrictions, or limitations affecting the County Property or the County's future use thereof. Any temporary use arrangement would remain fully revocable by the County and subject to mutually acceptable terms and conditions, including DEPENDABLE's agreement to vacate the property within a reasonable notice period, should the County determine the property is needed for any County purpose.

As part of this concept, DEPENDABLE would welcome discussions regarding:

- Coordination of required demolition and permitting activities;
- Demolition and removal of the existing structures;
- Temporary construction logistics and staging use parameters during the Ombelle construction period;
- Site security, fencing, and maintenance obligations during any temporary occupancy period; and
- Site clearing and stabilization activities to deliver the County Property in a clean and cleared condition.

Given the active development timeline associated with the adjacent Ombelle project and the coordination required for upcoming construction activities, DEPENDABLE would appreciate the opportunity to discuss this concept with the County in the near term to determine whether there may be mutual interest in further evaluating a potential arrangement.

The intent of this proposal is to initiate discussions with the County regarding whether there may be interest in pursuing an arrangement whereby DEPENDABLE would undertake the foregoing activities at its sole cost and expense, subject to County authorization and execution of mutually acceptable agreements.

Thank you for your consideration, and we look forward to potential discussions.

Respectfully submitted,

Digitally signed by
Stephanie J. Toothaker,
Esq.
Date: 2026.05.22 13:27:08
-04'00'

Stephanie J. Toothaker, Esq.

EXHIBIT 1
OMBELLE AND COUNTY PROPERTY AERIAL

